
 

APPROVED MINUTES MAY 2016 APRP COMMITTEE MEETING - Page - 1 
 

APPROVED MEETING MINUTES 
NEVADA BOARD OF WILDLIFE COMMISSIONERS 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES, REGULATIONS, AND POLICY COMMITTEE 
THURSDAY, MAY 12, 2016 – 2:00 PM, NDOW HEADQUARTERS, 6980 SIERRA CENTER 

PARKWAY, RENO, NV 89511 
 

Attendance: Committee Chair David McNinch, Commissioner Grant Wallace, Commissioner 
Paul Valentine, Deputy Attorney General Harry Ward, and Committee Staff Management 
Analyst III Kim Jolly, and Administrative Assistant IV Cassandra Grieve.   No members of public 
in attendance.  
 
1. Call to Order, Introduction and Roll Call of Committee Members  

The members Pledge of Allegiance and the meeting convened when all members were 
present, at 2:47pm.  
 

2 Approval of Agenda - Chair David McNinch (For Possible Action) 
The Committee will review the agenda and may take action to approve the agenda. The 
Committee may remove items from the agenda, continue items for consideration or take 
items out of order at any time. 
 
There was discussion to approve agenda as is.  No public Comment.  Commissioner 
Wallace moved and 2nd by Commissioner Valentine to approve, all in favor.   
 

3. *Approval of Minutes – Chair David McNinch (For Possible Action) The Committee will 
review and may approve the DRAFT Minutes from the meeting on April 13, 2016.  
 
Discussion regarding the draft minutes for approval.  No public comment.  Motion: 
Commissioner Valentine; 2nd Commissioner Wallace. All in favor.   
 

4. *Review and Recommend Clarifying Changes to Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 
501.140-501.190 Appeals - Chair McNinch (For Possible Action) 
The Committee may take action to approve clarifying draft amendments to Nevada 
Administrative Code 501.140 - 501.190 “Practice and Procedure Before the Board of 
Wildlife Commissioners – Appeals” for submittal to the LCB for drafting.  
 
Committee Chair McNinch provided some comments and proposed changes to page 1, #3 
“The commission will include…” include the word “or hold” a special meeting. Then staff 
provided additional clarity on language added that was not part of the conversation of the 
last meeting: The DAG suggested a change on p. 3. to instead read “Attorneys General” 
instead of “Attorney Generals” from the DAGs.  Committee Chair is okay with additions.  
 
There was discussion about whether this NAC mockup will be presented tomorrow to full 
Wildlife Commission meeting.  MA3 Jolly clarified that there is no need to at this point, 
since the Commission will hear it in formal workshop and hearing per requirement.  There 
was discussion that they don’t want to confuse the board with double hearings as 
committee bringing forward twice – so no need for commission level until it is actually 



 

APPROVED MINUTES MAY 2016 APRP COMMITTEE MEETING - Page - 2 
 

Legislative Counsel Bureau (LCB) language.  The Committee Report will be where the Chair 
can report on approved language that will be seen in a future workshop.  The commission 
will see it when the CABs get it, etc.  
 
There was discussion about the need an “R” number from LCB, etc. before going before the 
commission and the time length that would take before it could be placed on for 
Commission Workshop.  Then committee discussed the clarifying draft amendments as 
presenting with the following change, include the word “hold” section 3, present to LCB for 
drafting. 
 
It was moved and seconded (Commissioner Wallace, 2nd Commissioner Valentine to move 
forward item 4, the DRAFT Appeals NAC to LCB for an “R” number, all in favor.   
 
 

5. *Review and recommend changes to Commission Policy 1-Guidelines for the 
Commission, for recommendation to the Commission – Management Analyst 3 Kim Jolly 
and Chair McNinch (For Possible Action)  
The Committee may take action to amend Policy 1 “General Guidelines for the 
Commission” for recommendation to the full Commission. (*Support material) 
 
Committee Chair McNinch asked staff to go over the item.  MA3 Jolly said this version is on 
commission agenda for first reading.  If changes are made to this document, we will note 
them and ask them if they want to move ahead with the changes.  I would like to move all 
3 together. 
 
Committee Chair McNinch said he has individual suggestions to edit the Mock-up and then 
asked if anyone else had any.  Neither commission had additions.   
 
Page 2, #5, Official duties. Okay with that but my notes had something else “performing 
duties of the commission”.  Is the committee okay with the writing?   
 
There was discussion about p. 5 and the actual NRS reference. 
Commissioner Wallace and Valentine both indicated there were okay with it. 
 
Committee Chair McNinch: 6A, in which case.  Strike “in which case”. P. 4, section C, is that 
supposed to be D? #7, per statute…. Is generated?  Will provide 
 
MA3 Jolly suggested adding a missing verb. How about will be provided/is provided? 
In agreement.  Then there was discussion about what the actual language said in the Trust 
Fund reporting - will or shall?  MA3 Jolly clarified that NRS says shall but we don’t have to 
include that as this is a guideline.  Nothing changes NRS. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Valentine, motion to approve policy 1 guidelines with the 
following changes, #6A, #6, C to D, #7 “will be” after money in the 2nd paragraph.  
Commissioner Wallace 2nds.   With one addition from MA3 Jolly: p. 2 (#5), comma after 
compensation.  All in favor with that addition. 



 

APPROVED MINUTES MAY 2016 APRP COMMITTEE MEETING - Page - 3 
 

Committee Chair McNinch noted that these minor P-1 changes will go to commission 
tomorrow on top of those already in support material.  
 

6. *Review and Recommend Changes to Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 501.195  
Miscellaneous Petitions – Chair McNinch (For Possible Action) 
The Committee may take action to approve clarifying draft amendments to Nevada 
Administrative Code 501.195 “Miscellaneous Petitions” for submittal to the LCB for 
drafting.  
 
There was a presentation by staff MA3 Jolly regarding research on petition regulations of 
other agencies, and what is required by the statute referenced NRS 233B.100.  The key 
phrase is in the last sentence on #1 (in the reference box) dictating the minimum required 
action by the agency must be within 30 days.  It does not say we have to have a hearing, 
which was inserted by us in our NAC.  Ms. Jolly outlined how other agencies, DETR, etc., 
receive a letter requesting change, they have to respond in writing accepting or denying 
the petition and then proceed if they agree.  Environmental Commission’s process was 
outline in a hand-out (is appointed commission like NBWC) is more formal and stringent, 
requiring people to fill out a form on-line in addition to a small business impact form.  
Handout of their NAC and petition reg.   
 
Jolly - To apply this method/process to NDOW and the Commission, NDOW Staff and the 
Secretary of the Commission could look at the form, analyze it and give a recommendation 
at the commission meeting and the board talks about it and they move forward. Involves 
more technical review by the agency.  That would be more involvement from the dept. 
would probably be helpful.   
 
Jolly - Our existing petition form is a common form. A flow chart previously developed by 
former NDOW DAG Nhu Nguyen, Former Chief Game Warden, and me or the ideal, 
simplified process for petitions going forwards.  NRS Authority review from staff and DAG, 
help out with the form portion that only staff knows, talk to the commission about 
technical, NRS matters, then accept or deny. 
 
Committee Chair McNinch: Is there really a requirement for a hearing of the petitioner?  
No, not in NRS, only in our NAC.  But the response in writing to the petition is the 30 days – 
that is locked in NRS 233B.100.  No provision for extension of 30 days.  That is it? 
 
There was discussion about the initiating rulemaking, the language agency shall respond, 
DAG: Hands tied.  Language “shall” = mandatory. And there were questions about what 
connection there is to the commission and hearing and whether it was necessary, versus 
the department approving or denying.   
 
There was then policy discussion on if there is value to the petitioner presenting at a 
commission meeting.   
 
Committee Chair McNinch: as the policy making part of the agency.  The NRS does not say 
commission.  It says the Dept.   



 

APPROVED MINUTES MAY 2016 APRP COMMITTEE MEETING - Page - 4 
 

 
DAG: This NRS does not bind the commission.  It binds the agency.  The NAC binds the 
Commission, but we can change that. 
 
Committee Chair McNinch: What is agency’s job?  If I’m the agency, we have a petition, but 
I don’t make the rules, the commission makes the rules 
 
DAG: The Dept. is bound by the NRS; they would have to make the decision whether to 
engage the commission.  The problem is the OML which ties the hands of the commission, 
ties the hands of the agency 
 
Commissioner Valentine: the agency could deny a petition? 
DAG: yes. 
Commissioner Valentine: If there is no upcoming meeting – is that reason for denial? 
 
MA3 Jolly: No. With this NAC we have to place it on the very next commission meeting, 
regardless.  That has been our present DAG’s advice. But also, practically, we wouldn’t 
want to deny something that might be a good idea.  There are instances where we get 
ideas for regulation changes other than a petition.  We still respond to letters even though 
they are not petitions. 
 
Committee Chair McNinch: If I’m the dept., I would initiate rule making.  The dept. says 
anything comes through here we won’t deny, we’ll let the commission deal with it. 
 
Committee Chair McNinch: goes to next commission meeting.  But based on this…. What 
about an ad hoc committee? Two steps: deny or accept for rule making.  Accepted for rule 
making through a committee, the 30 days kicks in. 
 
There was discussion about the idea for an Ad-Hoc Petition Committee; but then what if 
the ad hoc committee (like with appeals) denies it and they want to resubmit to the full 
commission. 
 
Committee Chair McNinch: The ad hoc would be part of the process.  Staff would be 
involved in clarifying it, researching it, etc. Petition given to ad hoc committee, agency says 
no conflict, but….  Reasons why you might deny it, but you can respond with denial. And 
submit back to petitioner. 
 
Commissioner Valentine: at some point regulations will be initiated. 
 
Then there was discussion about accepting all petitions, and whether some would be 
worth investing staff time even if not practical or policy worthy.  The whole trigger of the 
meeting – the commission will – inserting the commission into the process instead of the 
agency.   
 
Committee Chair McNinch: accepted petitions, rule making process and then denied them.  
The front end: the key thing is to deny it in 30 days or if a committee moved it forward to 



 

APPROVED MINUTES MAY 2016 APRP COMMITTEE MEETING - Page - 5 
 

the commission because of an application, etc., it’s a good proposal and goes to the 
commission.   
 
DAG: argued that it was advancement – taking into committee. 
 
Commissioner Valentine: Clarify NRS 233B.100; I don’t see the commission involved?  It 
says agency. 
 
DAG: The agency would be the NDOW, but the NAC says the Commission.  NRS overrules 
NAC and we are here discussing amendments to the NAC.   
 
Committee Chair McNinch: if the commission stuff is removed from the NAC, where does 
that leave the agency?  The agency is not the rule making body; the commission is.  Is this 
an agency issue? 
 
Commissioner Valentine: The agency initiates the reg. and brings it to the commission for 
approval or denial. Or just make decision to deny? 
 
MA3 Jolly: depends on how many people feel slighted by the process or not.  Depends on 
how long some of these took; the missing piece is the technical review and response from 
the agency.  Petitioners are asking for direction.  Whole process just because it is a 
petition; not based on good or bad petition. 
 
Committee Chair McNinch: Almost as if the Commission should decide this.  No rush here.  
Opportunity is to get it submitted by 7/1 to LCB, but not required.  We can talk to Tony and 
have a broader view of what the agency’s role is in this situation.  The NAC changes, once 
established, would be easy to do.  No motion at this time.  Look at NAC? 
 
Commissioner Wallace: we need a direction first. 
 
Committee Chair McNinch: I will reach out to the Director, and Chairman Drew to see their 
thoughts on this dilemma here and bring that back to the committee. 
 
Commissioner Valentine: Caught off guard by this new information that the NRS says 
agency is responsible. 
 
Committee Chair McNinch: where’s our role?  I thought this was to the commission and 
the time frames applied to us, not the agency.  Not sure the Commission should be plugged 
into this thing. 
 
MA3 Jolly: Well, other than the NAC which we can change, that is your decision on how to 
interpret and implement the NRS petition requirement.  The Arizona Commission has a 
staff regularly look at all ideas.  They don’t have the 30 limit in state law like we do though.  
Holding tank and look at them when they review their regulations.   
 
Committee Chair McNinch: conversation about changing the NRS from 30 days to 60 days. 



 

APPROVED MINUTES MAY 2016 APRP COMMITTEE MEETING - Page - 6 
 

Commissioner Valentine: NRS 233B.100? 
 
DAG: yes, NRS 233B.100.  Assume agency is the agency, not the commission.  Protect the 
commission from having special meetings every 30 days. 
 
There was discussion about ideas to reduce the size and scope of government and this NRS 
233B.100 has not been amended in a long time, since 1977.   
 
Committee Chair McNinch: No action.  Will reach out to Secretary of the Commission and 
Comm. Chair for guidance on future action in next day or two prior to the Elko Commission 
meeting. 
 

7. Future Committee Meetings and Agenda Items –Chair McNinch (For Possible Action)  
The chairman may designate and adjust items, or meeting dates, times, and locations at 
this time. 
Committee Chair McNinch: will try to meet before the Elko meeting.  Maybe phone 
meeting.  Two items: Policy 1 if rejected by commission, and petition issue.  Also, the 
wildlife contest policy petition.  Fair chase policy?  Or its own policy.  
 
MA3 Jolly: Heritage, Finance will be meeting in June.  
 
Committee Chair McNinch: Mid-June.  Or, in conjunction with the Elko meeting. 
 
MA3 Jolly: Or before June 24, 25th in Elko. 
 
Committee Chair McNinch and the members decided a phone meeting well in advance of 
the Elko Commission meeting would be best.  Get something for the June packet.  No 
public comment.   
  

8. Public Comment Period – Chair McNinch  
Persons wishing to speak on items not on the agenda may do so in the Public Comment 
Period.  No action may be taken by the Committee.  However, the Committee may 
consider items brought up in the Public Comment Period to be scheduled on a future 
Committee agenda. 
 
Committee Chair McNinch: No public comment. 
 

9. Adjourned at 3:51pm. 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: CHAIR DAVID 
MCNINCH, GRANT WALLACE, AND PAUL 
VALENTINE 

STAFF TO THE COMMITTEE: MANAGEMENT 
ANALYST 3 KIM JOLLY, kjolly@ndow.org, 

775-688-1510
AGENDA 

NEVADA BOARD OF WILDLIFE COMMISSIONERS 
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES, REGULATIONS, AND POLICY COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, MAY 12, 2016 – 2:00 PM IN MAIN CONFERENCE RM 
NDOW HEADQUARTERS, 6980 SIERRA CENTER PARKWAY, RENO, NV 89511 

 
Public Comment will be taken on every action item after discussion but before action on each 
item, and are limited to 3 minutes per person.  Persons may not allocate unused time to other 
speakers.  Persons are invited to submit written comments to the Committee Staff on items or 
attend and make comment during the meeting which will become part of the record.  All 
persons present are asked to complete the sign-in sheet for attendance, whether speaking or 
not.  To ensure the public has notice of all matters the Committee will consider, Committee 
members may choose not to respond to public comments in order to avoid deliberation on 
topics not listed for action on the agenda. 
 
FORUM RESTRICTIONS AND ORDERLY BUSINESS: The viewpoint of a speaker will not be 
restricted, but reasonable restrictions may be imposed upon the time, place and manner of 
speech.  Irrelevant and unduly repetitious statements and personal attacks which antagonize 
or incite others are examples of public comment that may be reasonably limited. 
 
1. Call to Order, Introduction and Roll Call of Committee Members  

 
2 Approval of Agenda - Chair David McNinch (For Possible Action) 

The Committee will review the agenda and may take action to approve the agenda. The 
Committee may remove items from the agenda, continue items for consideration or take 
items out of order at any time.  
 

3. *Approval of Minutes – Chair David McNinch (For Possible Action) The Committee will 
review and may approve the DRAFT Minutes from the meeting on April 13, 2016. 
(*Support material)  
 

4. *Review and Recommend Clarifying Changes to Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 
501.140-501.190 Appeals - Chair McNinch (For Possible Action) 
The Committee may take action to approve clarifying draft amendments to Nevada 
Administrative Code 501.140 - 501.190 “Practice and Procedure Before Board of Wildlife 
Commissioners – Appeals” for submittal to the LCB for drafting. (*Support material) 
 

5. *Review and recommend changes to Commission Policy 1-Guidelines for the 
Commission, for recommendation to the Commission – Management Analyst 3 Kim Jolly 
and Chair McNinch (For Possible Action)  
The Committee may take action to amend Policy 1 “General Guidelines for the 
Commission” for recommendation to the full Commission. (*Support material) 
 

mailto:kjolly@ndow.org


 

Page 2 of 2 
 

6. *Review and Recommend Changes to Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 501.195  
Miscellaneous Petitions – Chair McNinch (For Possible Action) 
The Committee may take action to approve clarifying draft amendments to Nevada 
Administrative Code 501.195 “Miscellaneous Petitions” for submittal to the LCB for 
drafting. (*Support material) 
 

7. Future Committee Meetings and Agenda Items –Chair McNinch (For Possible Action)  
The chairman may designate and adjust items, or meeting dates, times, and locations at 
this time. 
  

8. Public Comment Period – Chair McNinch  
Persons wishing to speak on items not on the agenda may do so in the Public Comment 
Period.  No action may be taken by the Committee.  However, the Committee may 
consider items brought up in the Public Comment Period to be scheduled on a future 
Committee agenda. 
 

9. Adjourn  
 
*Support material provided including updates, and posted to the NDOW website 
(www.ndow.org and may be requested from the Committee Staff Kim Jolly (775-688-1510), 
posted to the NDOW website, and will be available at the meeting.  
 
Notice to the Public:  Nevada Department of Wildlife receives Federal Aid in Fish and/or 
Wildlife Restoration.  The U.S. Department of the Interior prohibits discrimination on the basis 
of race, color, creed, religion, national origin, age, sex, or disability.  In accordance with NRS 
241.020, this agenda closes three days prior to the meeting date and has been posted at the 
meeting location, and at the following Department of Wildlife offices: 1100 Valley Road, Reno, 
NV 89512; 6980 Sierra Center Parkway, Reno, NV, 89511; 380 W. “B” Street, Fallon, NV, 89406; 
815 E. Fourth Street, Winnemucca, NV 89445; 60 Youth Center, Elko, NV, 89801; 1218 N. Alpha 
Street, Ely, NV 89301; 744 S. Racetrack Road, Henderson, NV 89015; and 4747 W. Vegas Dr., 
Las Vegas, NV, 89108. Individuals with hearing impairment may contact the Department at 
775-688-1500 via a text telephone telecommunications device by first calling the State of 
Nevada Relay Operator at 1-800-326-6868.  Individuals with a disability who are in need of 
special services should contact the Department with as much prior notice as possible at 
kjolly@ndow.org or 775-688-1510. 

http://www.ndow.org/
mailto:kjolly@ndow.org


 

Admin Proc. Regs, and Policy Committee (4-13-16)- Page 1 of 6 
 

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 
NEVADA BOARD OF WILDLIFE COMMISSIONERS 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES, REGULATIONS, AND POLICY COMMITTEE 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 13, 2016 – 3:00 PM 

NDOW Western Region Office, 1100 Valley Road, Reno, NV 89512  
 
 
Present: Management Analyst III Kim Jolly, Chair David McNinch, Deputy Attorney General 
Harry Ward, Administrative Assistant IV Katie Simper, Chief Game Warden Tyler Turnipseed, 
and members of the public Fred Voltz, Caron Tayloe, and Rex Flowers. 
 
By Phone: Commissioners Grant Wallace and Commissioner Paul Valentine 
 
1. Call To Order  

Called to order at 3:02 
 

2 Approval of Agenda - Chair David McNinch (For Possible Action) 
The Committee will review the agenda and may take action to approve the agenda. The 
Committee may remove items from the agenda, continue items for consideration or take 
items out of order at any time.  
 
No public comment. 
Wallace motioned to approve, Valentine approved motion, passed 3-0 
 

3 Approval of Minutes – Chair David McNinch (For Possible Action) The Committee will 
review and may approve the DRAFT Minutes from the meetings on January 13, 2016 and 
February 18, 2016. (*Support material)  
 
Reviewed no changes, no public comment, Valentine motioned, Wallace seconded. All in favor as 
presented, motion approved 3-0. 
 

4 Review and Recommend Changes to Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 501.140 – 
501.190: Appeals - Chair McNinch (For Possible Action) 
The Committee may take action to approve draft amendments for recommendation to the 
full Commission. (*Support material) 
 
 
 
Commissioner McNinch – focus our attention on two aspects.  First, relates to the hearing process. 
If we are making changes in policy we need to make changes in the NAC itself.  Next, look at 
updating the special meeting process to include conducting appeals as a separate meeting and to 
also notifying the appellant that there are limits that the commission can provide them during the 
appeal. 
 
 
 

NAC 501.150 Request for hearing concerning denial, revocation or suspension of license or permit; 
time and notice of hearing; stay of decisions of Department. 



 

Admin Proc. Regs, and Policy Committee (4-13-16)- Page 2 of 6 
 

 
Committee went through sections one at a time. In the draft language 501.150, Section #3 has tracked 
changes to read “The Commission will include the hearing on the agenda “a special and separate 
meeting.”  Kim Jolly stated we need to write it so it gives us more flexibility; it’s the “for the next 
regularly scheduled meeting” part that is not flexible for the Department. 
 
Commissioner Wallace asked about section #3 special meeting. Problems with 30 day timeline we 
would have to have a special meeting, but if we can tie it to a scheduled meeting it would work best. 
 
Harry Ward said he had two concerns; the past appeal went on for 3 hours and there was not a hearing 
within 30 days.  You are going to run into a problem if there is not a meeting in 30 days, unless you get 
an ok from the appellant to go over the 30 day.  
 
Chairman McNinch said he doesn’t see where it says we have to have a hearing within 30 days; the 
appellant has to respond within 30 days.  
 
Commissioner Valentine asked if we could leave the language “for the next regularly scheduled 
meeting” and then add our draft language “or hold a special meeting.”  All agreed with this. 
 
Kim Jolly, regarding Section #4, our executive secretary sends out the notices.  Kim read the 
specifications that have to be on the notice within 20 days.  
 
Harry Ward said the problem with reducing it to 10 days we are going to get complaints that we are not 
giving them enough time to get their ducks in a row. 
 
Chairman McNinch said he was more comfortable leaving it at the 20 days, putting the burden on the 
Department not the appellant. 
 
NAC 501.155 Representation of appellant or petitioner. 
Chairman McNinch said I think we should not add the separate Deputy Attorney General to represent 
the Commission and Department to this. Chairman McNinch stated that he doesn’t see why this needs 
to be in here.  He asked is this something we would want to in NAC or Policy.   
 
Kim Jolly replied the appellant does not have to follow commission policy, that’s why I put in the NAC 
that “If the appellant has hired an attorney to represent him or her, he or she will notify the 
Department in advance.”  It clues us into the fact that this appeal will definitely need more time 
allotted to it.   
 
There was discussion that appeals with attorneys take longer because more questions are asked, etc.   
 
Harry Ward – Commission could say since you did not notify us and you have an attorney so we are 
going to continue this to a meeting with more time.   
Chairman McNinch asked, if we added this, could the Commission say you did not meet our 
requirements if they show up with an attorney that we didn’t receive advance notice about, could we 
say we are not going to hear your appeal?  Harry Ward replied we could ask for a continuance, to delay 
it to a future meeting because we didn’t receive the notice.   Harry Ward said that leaving it the way it 
is drafted is sufficient.  
 
Commissioner Valentine suggested they change hired to “retained” an attorney”.  Agreed. 
 



 

Admin Proc. Regs, and Policy Committee (4-13-16)- Page 3 of 6 
 

NAC 501.160 Conduct at hearing; maintenance of order.– no changes  
 
Next they reviewed amendments to section NAC 501.165 Hearing de novo; evidence and allegations 
at certain hearings. 
 
Chairman McNinch - Add comments to inform appellants that there may be limited ability of the 
Commission to provide remedy when and appellant pleads. The Chairman also asked the DAG, what is 
a hearing de novo?  

 
DAG Ward explained that “De Novo” is Latin for "anew," which means starting over, as in a trial de 
novo. It is like a Mulligan in golf, a re-do get to do it over again.   
 
There was discussion that this section 1 of NAC 501.165 is very misleading to the appellant, if they’ve 
been convicted already, with that language in there, it makes it sound like they get to retry their case. 
Yet, right below it, in section 2(b) we have that “the Commission can consider only allegations of 
procedural error committed by the department that affect the substantive rights of the applicant.”  
And in section 2(a) that they “can allow to be presented only evidence in the record of the suspension 
or revocation of the license…. that is on file with the Department.”  It’s giving them false hope.  

 
Chairman McNinch read section 2.  If we are going to add to this we should put #3. Ward replied, that is 
probably where you would put the number three. 
 
Chairman McNinch asked do we want to work the wording here or do it in a May 12 meeting? He also 
asked DAG Ward if we can change the wording “de novo”.   
 
Harry Ward said no, this is a real legal term.  
 
Chairman McNinch suggest we ask the department to draft some language that we can give to the DAG 
to drive home the message that if you have been convicted you may not want to spend a lot of time on 
it at our level.   
 
Commissioners Wallace and Valentine agreed this should be put into NAC and policy.  Even if we put it 
in there you still are going to have those ones that still want to appeal their case but it could eliminate 
some also. 
 
Next was review of 501.170 Discovery 
Kim Jolly – only hear what is relevant not what has already been heard.  
 
Harry Ward commented that the Commission will limit the discovery to the documents ………… The 
Commission is going to hear only what they are responsible for. 
 
Commissioner Wallace asked do we leave as is?  McNinch, yes.  
 
No draft amendments or comments beyond 501.170. 

 
Public comment: 
Fred Voltz - 501.150 & 501.130, type of days should be clarified, business days or calendar days.  Also, I 
don’t see any prohibition stating the Commission couldn’t design an Ad-hoc Committee of three 
commissioners to hear the appeal.  Pg. 2, 501.165 item #3, should be something simple, the appellant 
needs to know they can’t have a retrial. 



 

Admin Proc. Regs, and Policy Committee (4-13-16)- Page 4 of 6 
 

 
Chairman McNinch said he likes the concept of an Ad-hoc Committee for appeals, and clarifying the 
days (the simpler, the better.) 
 
DAG Harry Ward explained the legally common understanding is that its calendar days with some 
exceptions.   Most attorneys will say you don’t count the day the bell rings or weekends and state 
holidays if 5 days or less. Section 4: 20 days if lands on weekend goes to Monday, if Monday is a holiday 
goes to Tuesday. 
 
The Committee asked if they could put 30 calendar days. DAG Ward answered yes. Chairman McNinch 
said he was ok with adding calendar.  Chairman Wallace agreed, but not sure if necessary.  Chairman 
Valentine stated simpler is better - change to calendar. 
 
Chairman Valentine asked could it be a quorum of the commission.  
 
DAG Harry Ward replied, as long as you have a quorum you could hear it so you do not need to add 
that. I like the idea of the Ad-hoc Committee but then, someone may ask, who do they appeal to if they 
don’t like the result – the full Commission?  You are going to have to go to the NRS and it could open up 
a can of worms. 
 
Chairman Wallace – agrees with DAG Ward.  Also, what do we do when Commissioners excuse 
themselves from the appeal?  The Committee agreed this does happen. 
 
Public comment:  No public comment. 
 
Chairman McNinch – We will try to have a final draft at May meeting with guidance to Department for 
NAC 501.165 clarifying no remedy if convicted.   
 
Harry Ward suggested we add a #3 a to 501.165, such as “The appellant criminal case shall not be 
heard (or retried) on its merits”. 
 
Wallace said that that was good starting point, but let us have staff review and iron it all out.   
Chief Game Warden Tyler Turnipseed, will work with Kim Jolly on the language and contact DAG Ward 
if they have any questions. 

 
5 Review and recommend changes to Commission Policy 1 “General Guidelines for the 

Commission” for recommendation to the Commission – Management Analyst 3 Kim Jolly 
and Chair McNinch (For Possible Action)  
The Committee may take action to amend Policy 1 for recommendation to the full 
Commission. (*Support material) 

 
Chairman McNinch – we will go through each section of Policy 1: 
 
In the Policy section, there were no proposed changes.  In the Purpose section there were no 
proposed changes. 
 
Under the Procedure section, number 2, “Meetings”  



 

Admin Proc. Regs, and Policy Committee (4-13-16)- Page 5 of 6 
 

Chairman McNinch read through the proposed changes as well as his suggested additions.  
McNinch suggested amending to read “A meeting calendar for the next two years will be approved 
no later than at the regularly scheduled meeting closest to March in even-numbered years”. 
 Chairman Wallace - good with changes.  Chairman Valentine asked for clarification  
 
Section 3 or 4: no changes 
 
Section 5: Is it necessary to put the $80? McNinch proposed to delete $80 per day.  Delete out “and 
may receive” not needed per Kim Jolly.    
 
And in section a) under official duties the draft has added a #5) Establishing broad policies….. 
 
Harry Ward asked, do Commissioners serving on a committee get compensation for travel when 
they have been deposed for court? 
 
b: 2 & 4 leave changes. 
  
Section 6: Adoption of Commission Policies adding “or Resolutions and Record Keeping.” 
 
Chairman McNinch - we should clarify our intent as a Commission not to push anything through 
and spread these out.   
 
a. No changes  
b. No changes 
c. McNinch proposed changes adding “or revised policy to repeal a policy” 
d. Kim Jolly added this new section on “Record-Keeping of Wildlife Commission Policies”and 

further explained.  Second paragraph was taken from the procedure for public records.    
 
Chairman McNinch reviewed how the need for this came about, from policy 26 elk planning 
(duplicate policy numbers.  The new policy 26 refers to transparency.)  The discussion at the March 
meeting was how we are going to handle this.  
 
Chairman Wallace said Kim did a good job d. explaining this, maybe this can stop getting two 
policies with the same number again in the future. 
 
Section 7: Acceptance of Gifts, Grants, Donations and Bequests 
Chairman McNinch stated that the second paragraph still has value in bringing to Commission, 
maybe in a more formal matter. Fit well with the standard business.  I think third paragraph 
starting with “All gifts, grants etc.” is important to leave in.  Chairman Wallace and Valentine 
agreed.  
 
Public comment: 
Fred Voltz, 6d new numbering scheme should be unique. Also, pg. 2 has repetitive language under 
5. “while performing official duties of the commission while engaged in the business of the 
Commission”.  Meetings item pg. 1 and 2.  The Yerington meeting was a perfect example why the 
video conference is important because there was not one member from the public from Yerington.  
 
Rex Flowers, under #5. Compensation for members, does this mean CAB members who attend 
committee meetings too?  And what about members of the public sitting on the Committee, they 



 

Admin Proc. Regs, and Policy Committee (4-13-16)- Page 6 of 6 
 

should be reimbursed and should have the ability to state whether they want to receive 
compensation.   
 
Back to the committee discussion: 
Chair McNinch – there was an unwritten agreement by commissioners many years ago to agree not 
to take compensation for committee meetings.  Commissioner Wallace asked, but that is part of 
our official duties.  In clarification Kim Jolly to read NRS 501.179 regarding compensation and per 
diem to the Commission.  The official duties are several NRS long – this policy is just a guideline.  
Kim Jolly explained there is travel per diem for CAB members paid for by the Department, in a 
different budget account, but under the Department.  Chairman McNinch said we don’t need to 
address - really clarifying for the Commission. 
 
Chairman McNinch stated that committee members would get travel and per diem, but not the 80 
dollars as that only pertains to Commissioners.   
 
Commissioner Valentine – looking at #2, meetings paragraph, below is that to stay in, or come out? 
Kim Jolly agreed and suggested taking out first 4 sentences (The commission in its discretion may 
choose to not follow….pursuant to NRS 241.) up to “Meeting dates and places will not be changed.”  
 
Commissioner Wallace under procedures, section 5, I agree with Mr. Voltz that it is redundant. 
 
Chairman McNinch asked do we want to discuss more on Policy 1, Kim said bring the whole policy 2 
agenda items at beginning of meeting.  Consider final language that the Department puts together 
for us. Follow up on NAC for the hearings.  NAC related to petitions.   
 

6. Future Committee Meetings and Agenda Items –Chair McNinch (For Possible Action)  
The next committee meeting is tentatively scheduled on Thursday, May 12 in Reno, 
Nevada.  The chairman may designate and adjust items, or meeting dates, times, and 
locations at this time. 
  
Have committee meeting May 12 early in the afternoon. Starting around 2 or 3. 
  

7. Public Comment Period – Chair McNinch  
Persons wishing to speak on items not on the agenda may do so in the Public Comment 
Period.  No action may be taken by the Committee.  However, the Committee may 
consider items brought up in the Public Comment Period to be scheduled on a future 
Committee agenda. 
 
Caron Tayloe commented that it has been over a year since we heard the coyote killing contest 
petition and we are preparing BDRs if you don’t do something. 
 
Chairman McNinch provided an update; we did receive a straw dog draft from the Department to 
get us started down that path.  Our intent is to review the Wildlife policies in the future, possibly in 
June after we finish reviewing the three-year Rules of Practice Review, which are required by state 
law.  Kim Jolly said we are still taking and collecting comments and ideas for the other wildlife 
contest policy however, not just our draft. 
 

8. Adjourn 
Meeting adjourned at 5:22 pm 



MOCKUP FOR ADMIN. PROC. REGS. AND POLICY COMMITTEE 5-12-16 

Change Ideas for Appeal Regulation NAC 501.140-501.190 – page 1 
 

PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE BEFORE BOARD OF WILDLIFE COMMISSIONERS 

Hearings 

      NAC 501.140  Applicability. (NRS 501.181)  The provisions of NAC 501.140 to 501.190, 

inclusive, apply to any matter that is within the jurisdiction of the Commission. 

      NAC 501.150  Request for hearing concerning denial, revocation or suspension of 

license or permit; time and notice of hearing; stay of decision of Department. (NRS 

501.181) 

     1.  A person who is aggrieved by a decision of the Department must submit a written request 

for a hearing before the Commission within 30 calendar days after he receives a notice from the 

Department pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS 233B.127 that his license or permit will be denied, 

revoked or suspended. Otherwise, his right to the hearing shall be deemed waived. The date of 

receipt of the notice from the Department that the license or permit will be denied, revoked or 

suspended shall be deemed to be: 

     (a) The date that is indicated on the signed certified mail receipt; or  

     (b) If the person refuses to accept delivery of the notice, 3 calendar days after the date the 

certified mail has been refused by the person. 

     2.  The hearing must be requested on a form provided by the Department. 

     3.  The Commission will include the hearing on the agenda for the next regularly scheduled 

meeting or a special and separate meeting of the Commission that is conducted after the 

Department receives the request for a hearing, unless the appellant and Department agree 

otherwise in writing. 

     4.  The Department shall send by certified mail a notice of hearing in regards to the appeal 

request that complies with the provisions of NRS 233B.121  not less than 20 calendar days 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-501.html#NAC501Sec140
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-501.html#NAC501Sec190
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-233B.html#NRS233BSec127
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-233B.html#NRS233BSec121


MOCKUP FOR ADMIN. PROC. REGS. AND POLICY COMMITTEE 5-12-16 

Change Ideas for Appeal Regulation NAC 501.140-501.190 – page 2 
 

before the date of the hearing. In the Department’s statement of legal authority and jurisdiction 

per NRS 233B.121 subsection 2(b), the Department shall clarify that if a person has been 

convicted they will only be able to appeal procedural error, and that a criminal case will not be 

retried on its merits. 

There is a rebuttable presumption that the notice of hearing has been received by an appellant 10 

calendar days after the date the notice was deposited in the United States mail.   

     5.  Any contention that improper notice was given by the Department shall be deemed waived 

unless the contention is raised at the hearing. 

     6.  Except as otherwise provided in NRS 501.1816, the Department may grant a stay of its 

decision to deny, revoke or suspend the license or permit pending the hearing before the 

Commission if the Department determines that: 

     (a) There is good cause to stay its decision; and 

     (b) A stay will not have a detrimental impact on wildlife. 

      NAC 501.153  Filing and service of certain documents before hearing on appeal. (NRS 

501.181)  At least 14 calendar days before the date set for a hearing for an appeal, each party to 

the appeal must file with the Commission and serve upon all other parties to the appeal: 

     1.  All documents that the party intends to introduce as evidence at the hearing; and 

     2.  A written statement setting forth: 

     (a) The name and address of the party; 

     (b) The reason for the appeal, if the party is the appellant; 

     (c) A brief statement supporting the position of the party; and 

     (d) If the party intends to introduce witnesses, a list setting forth the name of each witness 

together with a brief summary of the proposed testimony of the witness. 

Deleted: of the notice 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec1816
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181


MOCKUP FOR ADMIN. PROC. REGS. AND POLICY COMMITTEE 5-12-16 

Change Ideas for Appeal Regulation NAC 501.140-501.190 – page 3 
 

      NAC 501.155  Representation of appellant or petitioner. (NRS 501.181)  An appellant or 

a petitioner may be represented by an attorney who is licensed to practice law in this State.  If 

the appellant has retained an attorney to represent him or her, he or she will notify the 

Department in advance.  The Wildlife Commission and the Department will each be 

represented by a separate Deputy Attorneys General. 

      NAC 501.160  Conduct at hearing; maintenance of order. (NRS 501.181) 

     1.  A person appearing before the Commission shall act in a courteous manner that is 

conducive to the proper functioning of the Commission. 

     2.  The Commission may take any action that it determines is necessary to maintain order 

during a hearing, including, without limitation: 

     (a) Excluding the appellant or petitioner or the attorney for the appellant or petitioner from the 

hearing; 

     (b) Excluding a witness from the hearing; and 

     (c) Limiting the taking of testimony and presentation of evidence during the hearing. 

           NAC 501.165  Hearing de novo; evidence and allegations at certain hearings. (NRS 

501.181, 501.1818) 

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, a hearing regarding a denial, revocation or 

suspension of a license or permit ordered pursuant to the provisions of chapters 501 to 

506, inclusive, of NRS and any regulations adopted pursuant to those chapters will be 

conducted by the Commission as a hearing de novo. 

     2.  At a hearing conducted pursuant to NRS 501.1816, the Commission will: 

     (a) Allow to be presented only evidence that is in the record regarding the suspension or 

revocation of the license, permit or privilege that is on file with the Department; and 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec1818
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-506.html#NRS506
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec1816


MOCKUP FOR ADMIN. PROC. REGS. AND POLICY COMMITTEE 5-12-16 

Change Ideas for Appeal Regulation NAC 501.140-501.190 – page 4 
 

     (b) Consider only allegations of procedural error committed by the Department that affect the 

substantive rights of the appellant. 

3.  The appellant’s criminal case shall not be reheard on its merits. 

      NAC 501.170  Discovery. (NRS 501.181)  The Commission will limit discovery for a 

hearing regarding a denial, revocation or suspension of a license or permit ordered pursuant to 

the provisions of chapters 501 to 506, inclusive, of NRS and any regulations adopted pursuant to 

those chapters to evidence that is relevant and admissible pursuant to NAC 501.165. 

      NAC 501.175  Continuance. (NRS 501.181) 

     1.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, the date of a hearing may be continued once 

by a written stipulation from the appellant and the Secretary of the Commission. 

     2.  The date of a hearing may be continued more than once if the moving party submits a 

written motion for a continuance to the Commission. The Commission will grant the motion only 

if: 

     (a) Good cause exists to continue the hearing; and 

     (b) A continuance will not prejudice the nonmoving party. 

      NAC 501.179  Dismissal upon failure of appellant to appear. (NRS 501.181)  If an 

appellant fails to appear at a hearing after receiving adequate notice of the hearing and the 

appellant does not show good cause for the failure to appear at the hearing, the Commission may 

dismiss the appeal with prejudice. An appeal that is dismissed pursuant to this section may not be 

reconsidered by the Commission. The dismissal of an appeal pursuant to this section is a final 

decision for purposes of judicial review. 

     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Wildlife Comm’rs by R198-05, eff. 2-23-2006) 

      NAC 501.185  Procedure; burden of proof. (NRS 501.181, 501.1818) 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-506.html#NRS506
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-501.html#NAC501Sec165
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec1818


MOCKUP FOR ADMIN. PROC. REGS. AND POLICY COMMITTEE 5-12-16 

Change Ideas for Appeal Regulation NAC 501.140-501.190 – page 5 
 

     1.  The Commission will use the following procedure, in the order set forth in paragraphs (a) 

to (i), inclusive, for a hearing regarding a revocation or suspension of a license or permit ordered 

pursuant to the provisions of NRS 501.1812 to 501.1818, inclusive, and any regulations adopted 

pursuant to those sections: 

     (a) The hearing will be called to order by the Chairman of the Commission. 

     (b) The request for a hearing and notice of hearing will be entered into the record. 

     (c) The Commission may, on its own motion or that of a party, exclude witnesses from the 

hearing. 

     (d) The Commission will consider any: 

          (1) Preliminary motions; 

          (2) Stipulations; and  

          (3) Proposed orders that the Department and the appellant have agreed to pursuant to a 

settlement. 

     (e) The Department will present its evidence and then be cross-examined by the appellant and 

questioned by the Commission. 

     (f) The appellant will present its evidence and then be cross-examined by the Department and 

questioned by the Commission. 

     (g) The Department and appellant will present any rebuttal evidence and then be cross-

examined by the other party and questioned by the Commission on issues limited to the rebuttal 

evidence. 

     (h) Closing arguments will be presented by the Department and then by the appellant. 

     (i) The Commission will deliberate and then render orally its order with separately stated 

findings of fact and conclusions of law. 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec1812
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec1818


MOCKUP FOR ADMIN. PROC. REGS. AND POLICY COMMITTEE 5-12-16 

Change Ideas for Appeal Regulation NAC 501.140-501.190 – page 6 
 

 The Department has the burden of proof in a hearing regarding a revocation or suspension of a 

license or permit ordered pursuant to the provisions of chapters 501 to 506, inclusive, of NRS 

and any regulations adopted pursuant to those chapters. 

     2.  The Commission will use the following procedure, in the order set forth in paragraphs (a) 

to (e), inclusive, for a hearing regarding a denial of an appellant’s application for a license or 

permit ordered pursuant to the provisions of chapters 501 to 506, inclusive, of NRS and any 

regulation adopted pursuant to those chapters: 

     (a) The appellant will present its evidence and then be cross-examined by the Department and 

questioned by the Commission. 

     (b) The Department will present its evidence and then be cross-examined by the appellant and 

questioned by the Commission. 

     (c) The Department and the appellant will present any rebuttal evidence and then be cross-

examined by the other party and questioned by the Commission on issues limited to the rebuttal 

evidence. 

     (d) Closing arguments will be presented by the appellant and then by the Department. 

     (e) The Commission will deliberate and then render orally its order with separately stated 

findings of fact and conclusions of law. 

 The appellant has the burden of proof in a hearing specified in this subsection. 

     3.  The Commission may deviate from the order of procedure set forth in subsections 1 and 2 

and allow or limit questioning to elicit all relevant, nonrepetitive testimony and evidence.  

     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Wildlife Comm’rs by R083-98, eff. 9-25-98; A by R198-05, 2-23-

2006) 

      NAC 501.190  Official record; transcription. (NRS 501.181) 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-506.html#NRS506
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-506.html#NRS506
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181


MOCKUP FOR ADMIN. PROC. REGS. AND POLICY COMMITTEE 5-12-16 

Change Ideas for Appeal Regulation NAC 501.140-501.190 – page 7 
 

     1.  The official record of a hearing regarding a denial, revocation or suspension of a license or 

permit ordered pursuant to the provisions of chapters 501 to 506, inclusive, of NRS and any 

regulations adopted pursuant to those chapters will serve as the order of the Commission, unless 

otherwise stated by the Commission during the hearing. 

     2.  A party may request a transcription of the official record of the hearing. The transcription 

must be produced at the expense of the requesting party. 

     3.  A party may request a copy of the order of the Commission as transcribed from the official 

record of the hearing. 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-506.html#NRS506


SUPPORT MATERIAL  

Commission Policy 1 -Guidelines for the Commission - Page 1 

 STATE OF NEVADA 
 BOARD OF WILDLIFE COMMISSIONERS 

 
Number: P-1 

       Title: General Guidelines for the 
       Commission 
Commission Policy Number 1   Reference: NRS 501.179, 501.181, 

501.2585, NRS 241, NRS 501.356 (4), 
501.320 , NRS 502.253 (3). 

       Effective Date: February 15, 1980 
       Amended Dates:  September 22, 2007, 
           August 15, 2009 
   

POLICY 

It is the policy of the Board of Wildlife Commissioners to conduct the business matters of the 
Board according to the official duties and authority granted by the State laws and regulations 
and to provide clarification. 
 
 PURPOSE 

To guide the Commission in the transaction of business including selection and terms of a 
chair and vice chair, conduct of meetings, preparation of meeting schedules and agendas, 
definition of official duties, adoption of Commission Policies, and to ensure that the 
Commission formally recognizes individuals and entities that provide any gifts, grants, 
donations, or bequests to NDOW. 
  
 PROCEDURE 
 

1. Selection of Chair and Vice Chair: Terms of Office 
 
 During its first regularly scheduled meeting following July 1 of each year, the first order 

of business will be election of officers.  The Commission shall select a chair and vice 
chair from among its members who will continue to serve until the new election in the 
following year.  In case of the temporary absence of the chair, powers and duties shall 
devolve upon the vice chair.  A Commissioner cannot serve more than two consecutive 
terms as chair. 

 
2. Meetings 
 
 In conformance with NRS 501.177, the Commission may hold not more than nine 

regular meetings every year, but may hold special meetings at such times and places if 
necessary.  A meeting calendar for the next two years will be developed approved no 
later than at the regularly scheduled meeting closest to October 1 March of each the 
even-numbered year.  To the extent possible, the Commission’s will make efforts to 
adhere to the following guidelines for its regularly scheduled meetings: will be posted to 
the website and provided to members, advisory boards, and interested persons. 

 
 



SUPPORT MATERIAL  

Commission Policy 1 -Guidelines for the Commission - Page 2 

 
Month  Action Items 
June   Set/Revise Upland Game and Furbearer Seasons and Limits 
August  Set/Revise Waterfowl Seasons and Limits, Fisheries 

Regulations. 
Temporary and Permanent 

November  Policy, Regulations, and Program Reports 
February  Set/Revise Big Game Seasons and Regulations 
May   Set/Revise Big Game Quotas 
 

 The Commission in its discretion may choose to not follow the above guidelines and 
consider any above matter in a month that is different from the above guidelines.   If the 
Commission, in its discretion, decides to not adhere to the above guidelines, it will 
provide notice to the public of the change pursuant to NRS 241.020.  Meeting dates and 
places will not be changed from those listed on the meeting calendar unless there is a 
majority vote of the Commission to do so.  Any change to the schedule must be done in 
sufficient time to allow legal noticing of the meeting according to the Nevada Open 
Meeting Law, in NRS 241.  All meetings will be noticed and conducted in compliance 
with the Nevada Open Meeting Law. 

 
3. Agendas 
 
 A draft agenda will be developed by the Secretary to the Commission and approved by 

the Chair four weeks prior to the scheduled meetings.  A final agenda will be approved 
by the Chair, and distributed to Commissioners, county advisory board members, 
interested individuals or groups and staff with support material two weeks prior to the 
meeting. The agenda will be posted according to NRS 241.020.  

 
4. Conduct of Meetings 
 
 “Robert’s Rules of Order, Revised Edition,” shall guide the Chair in the conduct of all 

meetings; however, the Chair may vote on all actions requiring a vote.  
 
5. Compensation of Members:  Official Duties 
 

As provided in NRS 501.179, members of the Commission are entitled to receive 
compensation while attending Commission meetings, and receive travel expenses and 
per diem for official duties if elected to be received by the Commissioner and reviewed 
by the Chair.  Reimbursement is not allowed while in travel status, except for regular 
travel per diem. 
 
a. Official duties are: 

 
(1) Attend regularly scheduled or special meetings of the Commission; 
 

            (2)      Committee work established by the Commission or delegated by the  
 
 
 
 



SUPPORT MATERIAL  

Commission Policy 1 -Guidelines for the Commission - Page 3 

 
                      Chair; 
 

(3)      Assignments by the Chair between meetings; 
 

(4) Special events designated by a vote of the Commission to be official  
duties or assigned by the Chair. 
 

(5) Establishing broad policies, regulations, and guidance of the 
department, and county advisory boards as detailed in NRS 501.181 
(1-8). 

 
 

 
b. Method of Compensation: 
 

(1) The Secretary to the Commission will process payment based upon a 
compensation form signed by the Chair of the Commission.  The form will 
be prepared for the Chair by the Recording Secretary at each regularly 
scheduled meeting and will include any interim approval activities. 

 
(2) Reimbursement for transportation shall be by the most economical means 

considering total cost and time spent in transit.  The allowance for private 
conveyance will be at the rate All travel, per diem rates, and 
associated records required shall be as prescribed in the State 
Administrative Manual, Chapter 0200 Travel NDOW Travel Policy.  Air 
coach service must be used if travel is by commercial airline. 

 
(3)      Reimbursement for mileage will be based on the mileage chart shown on 

the official Nevada State Map when between two communities.  
 

(4)       Per diem claims will be completed on the Travel Expense Reimbursement  
 Claim form at the rates prescribed in the NDOW Travel Policy State  
 Administrative Manual. 

       
6. Adoption of Commission Policies Resolutions, and Record Keeping 
 
 a. Proposed policies, amendments, or requests to repeal policies shall be mailed or 

emailed as acceptable, to the Commission, county advisory boards to manage 
wildlife, and interested persons groups.  The Commission will have a minimum 
of two readings not on consecutive days of the revised or proposed policy in 
public meetings before the Commission takes action to adopt, amend, or repeal, 
or disapprove the policy.  Exception: If unless the policy is declared an 
emergency in which case the Commission may read, amend, and adopt the 
policy in one two readings on 2 consecutive days. 

 
 b. The effective date, amended date, and statutory authority of the policy shall 

be recorded as part of the policy. 
 
 c. An individual may request the Commission to adopt, amend, or repeal a policy by 



SUPPORT MATERIAL  

Commission Policy 1 -Guidelines for the Commission - Page 4 

submitting a letter addressed to the Chair/Care Of Secretary of the 
Commission, at the Nevada Department of Wildlife, Headquarters, 6980 Sierra 
Center Parkway Ste. 120, 1100 Valley Road, Reno, Nevada  895121.  The letter 
must contain the policy number and title for an existing policy, the intent or 
purpose of a new or revised policy, and the suggested language.  Such requests 
for a new, or revised policy, or to repealed a policy will may be placed on the a 
future Committee agenda, and ultimately for a the next regularly sched uled 
Commission meeting according to subsection 6. a. of this section.   

 
c. Record Keeping of Wildlife Commission Policies shall be maintained by the 

Director’s Office for the Agency, and Secretary of the Commission.  Any 
historical record of older Commission Policies or Resolutions that precede 
this shall be forwarded to the Management Analyst 3. 
 
Upon the suspension or amendment of a Commission Policy or Resolution, 
a copy of the previous version along with a memo will be sent to the State 
Library and Archives within a year from its amendment or suspension.  The 
documenting memo will be maintained in the Director’s Office with the title 
and number of that policy and or resolution.   
 
All new policies will be uniquely numbered; suspended or repealed 
Commission Policy numbers shall not be used again.  

 
 
7. Acceptance of Gifts, Grants, Donations and Bequests 
 

In 2011, the Wildlife Trust Fund was created in Statute as the non-executive 
account for donations to the Department from groups or individuals, and is to be 
used per the donor’s intent.   
 
Per statute, a report concerning the investment and expenditure of the money 
provided to the Wildlife Commission and the Interim Finance Committee 
semiannually.  Additionally, the anticipated amount and proposed expenditures of 
the money is provided to the Budget Director of the Governor’s Finance Office 
and the Fiscal Analysis Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau in a separate 
statement at the same time as the budget request. 
 
NRS 501.356 (4) provides that any matching money received by the Department from 
any source must be accounted for separately and must be used only for the 
management of wildlife.  It also states that the Commission has guidance over monies 
from the sale or issuance of a license, permit or tag (other than the PIW, Heritage, or 
Silver State) which are deposited in the Wildlife Account, pursuant to subsection 2 of 
NRS 501.181.   
 
NRS 502.253 (3) states that the Commission has guidance over any program developed 
or wildlife management activity or research conducted from monies collected by the $3 
predator fee pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 501.181. 
All gifts, grants, donations, and bequests made to the Nevada Department of Wildlife, or 
any Division thereof, will be presented to the Commission in a public meeting for 
recognition.   



SUPPORT MATERIAL  

Commission Policy 1 -Guidelines for the Commission - Page 5 

 
The Commission may offer input on which programs monetary gifts should be allocated 
if not so designated by the individual, group, or corporation donating, granting, 
bequeathing or gifting.  The Commission shall ensure that gifts, grants, donations, and 
bequests are used for their intended purposes.  State grants, federal grants, PIW 
donations, and Operation Game Thief donations are specifically excluded from the 
requirements of this section of policy. 
 

 
The policy shall remain in effect until amended, repealed, or superseded by the Board of Wildlife 
Commissioners, BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF WILDLIFE COMMISSIONERS IN REGULAR 
SESSION, _______________2016, Board of Wildlife Commissioners 
 
(*Statutes Below for Reference Purposes – not to be added to policy.) 
NRS 501.177  Meetings; quorum. 
      1.  The Commission may hold not more than nine meetings regularly each year based on need and the requests 
submitted by the county advisory boards to manage wildlife. 
      2.  Special meetings of the Commission may be held at such times and places as the Commission deems proper. 
      3.  Five members of the Commission constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business which may come 
before the Commission. 
      [Part 9:101:1947; A 1949, 292; 1943 NCL § 3035.09]—(NRS A 1969, 1547; 1979, 891; 1981, 607; 1983, 1446; 
1989, 2192; 1995, 2585) 

      NRS 501.179  Compensation of members. 
      1.  Members of the Commission are entitled to receive a salary of not more than $80 per day, as fixed by the 
Commission, while performing official duties for the Commission. 
      2.  While engaged in the business of the Commission, each member and employee of the Commission is entitled 
to receive the per diem allowance and travel expenses provided for state officers and employees generally. 
      3.  Compensation and expenses must be paid from the Wildlife Fund Account within the State General Fund. 
      [Part 9:101:1947; A 1949, 292; 1943 NCL § 3035.09]—(NRS A 1957, 160; 1969, 1547; 1975, 299; 1979, 891; 
1981, 1986; 1985, 432; 1989, 1717; 2011, 3146) 

      NRS 501.181  Duties; regulations.  The Commission shall: 
      1.  Establish broad policies for: 
      (a) The protection, propagation, restoration, transplanting, introduction and management of wildlife in this 
State. 
      (b) The promotion of the safety of persons using or property used in the operation of vessels on the waters of 
this State. 
      (c) The promotion of uniformity of laws relating to policy matters. 
      2.  Guide the Department in its administration and enforcement of the provisions of this title and of chapter 488 
of NRS by the establishment of such policies. 
      3.  Establish policies for areas of interest including: 
      (a) The management of big and small game mammals, upland and migratory game birds, fur-bearing mammals, 
game fish, and protected and unprotected mammals, birds, fish, reptiles and amphibians. 
      (b) The control of wildlife depredations. 
      (c) The acquisition of lands, water rights and easements and other property for the management, propagation, 
protection and restoration of wildlife. 
      (d) The entry, access to, and occupancy and use of such property, including leases of grazing rights, sales of 
agricultural products and requests by the Director to the State Land Registrar for the sale of timber if the sale does 
not interfere with the use of the property on which the timber is located for wildlife management or for hunting or 
fishing thereon. 
      (e) The control of nonresident hunters. 
      (f) The introduction, transplanting or exporting of wildlife. 
      (g) Cooperation with federal, state and local agencies on wildlife and boating programs. 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/65th/Stats198911.html#Stats198911page2192
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/68th/Stats199514.html#Stats199514page2585
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/63rd/Stats198502.html#Stats198502page432
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/65th/Stats198909.html#Stats198909page1717
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/76th2011/Stats201126.html#Stats201126page3146
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-488.html#NRS488


SUPPORT MATERIAL  

Commission Policy 1 -Guidelines for the Commission - Page 6 

      (h) The revocation of licenses issued pursuant to this title to any person who is convicted of a violation of any 
provision of this title or any regulation adopted pursuant thereto. 
      4.  Establish regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of this title and of chapter 488 of NRS, 
including: 
      (a) Seasons for hunting game mammals and game birds, for hunting or trapping fur-bearing mammals and for 
fishing, the daily and possession limits, the manner and means of taking wildlife, including, but not limited to, the 
sex, size or other physical differentiation for each species, and, when necessary for management purposes, the 
emergency closing or extending of a season, reducing or increasing of the bag or possession limits on a species, or 
the closing of any area to hunting, fishing or trapping. The regulations must be established after first considering 
the recommendations of the Department, the county advisory boards to manage wildlife and others who wish to 
present their views at an open meeting. Any regulations relating to the closure of a season must be based upon 
scientific data concerning the management of wildlife. The data upon which the regulations are based must be 
collected or developed by the Department. 
      (b) The manner of using, attaching, filling out, punching, inspecting, validating or reporting tags. 
      (c) The delineation of game management units embracing contiguous territory located in more than one county, 
irrespective of county boundary lines. 
      (d) The number of licenses issued for big game and, if necessary, other game species. 
      5.  Adopt regulations requiring the Department to make public, before official delivery, its proposed responses 
to any requests by federal agencies for its comment on drafts of statements concerning the environmental effect of 
proposed actions or regulations affecting public lands. 
      6.  Adopt regulations: 
      (a) Governing the provisions of the permit required by NRS 502.390 and for the issuance, renewal and 
revocation of such a permit. 
      (b) Establishing the method for determining the amount of an assessment, and the time and manner of payment, 
necessary for the collection of the assessment required by NRS 502.390. 
      7.  Designate those portions of wildlife management areas for big game mammals that are of special concern 
for the regulation of the importation, possession and propagation of alternative livestock pursuant to NRS 576.129. 
      8.  Adopt regulations governing the trapping of fur-bearing mammals in a residential area of a county whose 
population is 100,000 or more. 
      (Added to NRS by 1969, 1557; A 1977, 1229; 1979, 891; 1985, 1349; 1989, 729, 1268; 1991, 259, 2283, 2289; 
1993, 429, 816, 1654; 1995, 544; 1997, 2598; 2003, 1521, 2536; 2011, 1024) 

 
NRS 501.3585  Wildlife Trust Fund. 
      1.  The Department shall establish the Wildlife Trust Fund. The Department may accept any gift, donation, 
bequest or devise from any private source for deposit in the Wildlife Trust Fund. Any money received is private 
money and not state money. All money must be accounted for in the Wildlife Trust Fund. 
      2.  All of the money in the Wildlife Trust Fund must be deposited in a financial institution to draw interest or to 
be expended, invested and reinvested pursuant to the specific instructions of the donor, or if no such specific 
instructions exist, in the sound discretion of the Director. The provisions of NRS 356.011 apply to any accounts in 
financial institutions maintained pursuant to this section. 
      3.  The money in the Wildlife Trust Fund must be budgeted and expended, within any limitations which may 
have been specified by particular donors, at the discretion of the Director. The Director may authorize independent 
contractors that may be funded in whole or in part from the money in the Wildlife Trust Fund. 
      4.  The Director or the Director’s designee shall submit semiannually to the Interim Finance Committee and 
the Commission a report concerning the investment and expenditure of the money in the Wildlife Trust Fund in such 
form and detail as the Interim Finance Committee determines is necessary. 
      5.  A separate statement concerning the anticipated amount and proposed expenditures of the money in the 
Wildlife Trust Fund must be submitted to the Chief of the Budget Division of the Department of Administration for 
his or her information at the same time and for the same fiscal years as the requested budget of the Department 
submitted pursuant to NRS 353.210. The statement must be attached to the requested budget for the Department 
when the requested budget is submitted to the Fiscal Analysis Division of the Legislative Counsel Bureau pursuant 
to NRS 353.211. 
      6.  The provisions of chapter 333 of NRS do not apply to the expenditure of money in the Wildlife Trust Fund. 
      (Added to NRS by 2011, 3146) 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-488.html#NRS488
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-502.html#NRS502Sec390
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-502.html#NRS502Sec390
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-576.html#NRS576Sec129
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/63rd/Stats198506.html#Stats198506page1349
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/65th/Stats198904.html#Stats198904page729
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/65th/Stats198907.html#Stats198907page1268
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/66th/Stats199102.html#Stats199102page259
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/66th/Stats199110.html#Stats199110page2283
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/66th/Stats199110.html#Stats199110page2289
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/67th/Stats199302.html#Stats199302page429
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/67th/Stats199304.html#Stats199304page816
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/67th/Stats199308.html#Stats199308page1654
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/68th/Stats199503.html#Stats199503page544
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/69th/Stats199717.html#Stats199717page2598
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/72nd/Stats200312.html#Stats200312page1521
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/72nd/Stats200320.html#Stats200320page2536
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/76th2011/Stats201109.html#Stats201109page1024
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-356.html#NRS356Sec011
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-353.html#NRS353Sec210
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-353.html#NRS353Sec211
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-333.html#NRS333
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/76th2011/Stats201126.html#Stats201126page3146


MOCK CHANGES for APRP Committee as of 5-5-16 

Mockup Change Ideas to Petition Regulation page 1 

Miscellaneous Petitions 

      NAC 501.195  Petition to adopt, file, amend or repeal permanent regulation. (NRS 

233B.100, 501.181) 

     1.  A person who wishes to request that the Commission adopt, file, amend or repeal a 

permanent regulation must submit a written petition or electronic signed copy to the 

Commission on a form provided by the Department. The petition must include: 

     (a) The name and, fax and/or email, phone number and mailing address of the petitioner. 

     (b) A statement of the reason for the adoption, filing, amendment or repeal of the permanent 

regulation. 

     (c) The language of the permanent regulation to be adopted, filed, amended or repealed or a 

description of the subjects and issues involved in the permanent regulation. 

     (d) An estimate made by the petitioner of the economic effect that the permanent regulation to 

be adopted, filed, amended or repealed will have on the general public and on any business 

which the permanent regulation regulates or will regulate. Those effects must be stated 

separately and in each case must include: 

          (1) The adverse and beneficial effects; and 

          (2) The immediate and long-term effects. 

     (e) If the adoption, filing or amendment of a permanent regulation is requested, an estimate 

made by the petitioner of the estimated cost to the Department for enforcement of the permanent 

regulation. 

     (f) A statement indicating whether the petitioner is aware of any federal regulations or 

regulations of other state or local governmental agencies that overlap or duplicate the permanent 

regulation to be adopted, filed, amended or repealed. 

     (g) If the adoption, filing or amendment of a permanent regulation is requested, a statement 

indicating whether the permanent regulation establishes a new fee or increases an existing fee. 

     (h) The signature of the petitioner and the date the petition was signed. 

     2.  A petition requesting the adoption, filing, amendment or repeal of a permanent regulation 

shall be deemed to be submitted to the Commission on the date of the next regularly scheduled 

meeting of the Commission that occurs after the petition is received by the Commission.   

3.  Within 30 days after a petition is submitted the Commission will: 

Comment [KJ1]: Sect
ion is Amendable 

Comment [KJ2]: This 
section is amendable 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-233B.html#NRS233BSec100
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-233B.html#NRS233BSec100
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-501.html#NRS501Sec181


MOCK CHANGES for APRP Committee as of 5-5-16 

Mockup Change Ideas to Petition Regulation page 1 

(a) Notify the petitioner in writing of its decision to deny the petition, including the reasons for 

the denial; or 

     (b) Initiate the regulation-making procedures set forth in chapter 233B of NRS, if the petition 

requests the adoption, filing, amendment or repeal of a permanent regulation, except a permanent 

regulation relating to the classification of wildlife or the designation of seasons for hunting, 

fishing or trapping by the Commission pursuant to the provisions of title 45 of NRS. 

     (Added to NAC by Bd. of Wildlife Comm’rs by R029-00, eff. 6-20-2000; A by R198-05, 2-

23-2006) 

FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY: 

CHAPTER 233B - NEVADA ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT 

      NRS 233B.100  Petition for adoption, filing, amendment or repeal of regulation; amendment or 

suspension of regulation by Governor. 

      1.  Any interested person may petition an agency requesting the adoption, filing, amendment or repeal of any 

regulation and shall accompany the petition with relevant data, views and arguments. Each agency shall prescribe by 

regulation the form for such petitions and the procedure for their submission, consideration and disposition. Upon 

submission of such a petition, the agency shall within 30 days either deny the petition in writing, stating its reasons, 

or initiate regulation-making proceedings. 

      2.  Any regulation of any agency is subject to amendment or suspension by the Governor pursuant to the 

provisions of NRS 416.060. 

      (Added to NRS by 1965, 965; A 1977, 551, 1388) 

Comment [KJ3]: The 
Deadline of 30 days is 
NOT amendable per 
NRS below. 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-233B.html#NRS233B
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-416.html#NRS416Sec060
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/59th/Stats197703.html#Stats197703page551
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Statutes/59th/Stats197707.html#Stats197707page1388

